
Certified Pathways Community HUB Model Grant FY20-21 
Program/Fiscal 

Frequently Asked Questions (As of 6.18.19) 
 

You may email Commission Program or Fiscal Staff at: minhealth@mih.ohio.gov if additional 
information is needed.  

 
Program: 

 
1.  Is there a link where I can find the existing pathways community HUBS so that I can 

ascertain if we are eligible to apply for expansion funding?  
 

 To find a list of the Certified Pathways Community HUBs that the Commission funds, 
please visit our website at www.mih.ohio.gov. Once there, go to the Grants 
Opportunities page and scroll down to HUB Replication and Expansion. Here, you will 
find a list of Commission funded Certified Pathways Community HUBs. To find the 
locations for which we are funding Certified Community Pathways HUB grants, please 
view our Certified Pathways Community HUBs FY20 RFP. 
 
To find a list of other funded HUBs you would need to consult the various funders of 
such HUBs directly. The Commission does not have such a list from other funders. 

 
2. The first page on the application is asking for a Project Area but in the drop down there 

is nothing in the box to select? 
 

 Please ensure that the state fiscal year you have selected in FY20. Using Fy19 will 
prevent the project area from displaying a drop down list. 

 
3. I am looking for a clarification regarding the Ohio Minority Grant funding the Certified 

Community HUB Pathways. I attended a webinar and believed that South East Ohio area 
would be considered for a new HUB startup, but I now see the website and grant 
information showing South West. We are a rural HUB with the following counties 
expressing interest in expanding with us: Carroll, Knox, Coshocton and Muskingum 
with continued conversations with Guernsey County. Can you please tell me if we are 
eligible and can apply for this grant? 

 

 The Commission completed, posted and sent out a revised RFP to include a corrected 
service area for the new hubs to include Southeastern, Ohio.   

 
 
4. In the RFP it states that funding will be will be awarded to 501 (C) (3) community-based 

organizations with an active 501 (C) (3) designation.  Does this also include 501 (C) 1 
agencies that are a local/county health departments? 

 

 As per page 4 of the RFP, the RFP states that, to be eligible, organizations must, “…be 
a public or private organization which has a valid and active 501 (c)(3) designation and 
status at the time of application.” However, local/county health departments are exempt 
from this designation by virtue of their city government departmental status. Thus, 
local/county health departments ARE eligible to apply for HUB funding. 

 

mailto:minhealth@mih.ohio.gov
http://www.mih.ohio.gov/


5. To confirm, the Program Evaluator does not have to be selected from the approved list 
of REEP evaluators? This person can be internal. 

 

 Correct. The Program Evaluator does not have to be selected from the approved list of 
REEP evaluators. 

 Correct. The Program Evaluator can be internal. 
 
 
6. The REEP Evaluator will be assigned to us if funded?  
 

 Correct. A REEP Panel Evaluator will be assigned to each awarded HUB. The Panel 
Evaluator does not need to be included in your grant narrative or budget. Just 
remember, the REEP Panel Evaluator is a resource that the Commission provides and 
they will provide a high level review of your grant each quarter. You do not have to 
provide any content or additional report for them or on their behalf. 

 
7. For the expansion of new HUBs I understand that they will be linked with an existing 

HUB.  Will the new HUBs be linked with an existing HUB that has their contracts set up 
with Managed Care Providers so that the new HUBs will be able to immediately bill 
under the existing HUBs contracts? 

 

 Yes, each new HUB will be assigned an existing HUB as a mentor HUB. 
However, each new HUB must be a stand-alone entity. Thus, not reliant on the existing 
HUB for its operation. 

 
8. How long does it typically take to get contract set up through the Managed Care 

Providers?  And is this process problematic?   
 

 There is no set time frame for the contract process. It depends on the MCO, the area, 
the HUB, etc. Thus, Commission staff will not be able to provide this time frame for you. 
While the contract process is detailed, it should not be viewed as problematic. As it is 
one way in which the HUB becomes self-sustainable. 

 
9. Could you inform me if the Community HUB RFP webinar was recorded? 
 

 The Certified Pathways Community HUB RFP webinar was recorded. Please visit our 
website at www.mih.ohio.gov. Go to the Grant Opportunities page. Once there scroll to 
the HUB section where you will find all of the necessary HUB RFP process information. 

 
 
10. Can you please tell us who our approved evaluator for this application? We are looking 

to see who we need to contract with and how much he/she may charge. We are also 
interested in seeing if they are willing to help with the evaluation portion of the 
application? 

 

 Ms. McFadden your agency determines who your evaluator is. The Commission does 
not assign your program evaluator. If you are referring to the REEP panel member, they 
are not paid out of your grant, nor do you contract with a REEP panel member. As was 
discussed on the webinar, the REEP panel member is another layer of evaluative 
support that the Commission provides through our partnership with Wright State 
University. 

http://www.mih.ohio.gov/


 
11. As we prepare our proposal I have a request- would you post the goals and outcomes 

we need to include in the proposal as a list that we can work from.  At this point we 
have to open each one in the application and it is a bit time consuming. 

 

 As the MHGM system is built, there is no goal list from which to select. You must follow 
the application screens to complete each required goal, objective, activity and approach 
for the Certified Pathways Community HUB model in the application. As per the RFP, 
each goal, objective, activity and approach are required and must be completed. 
There are no optional goals, objectives, activities and approaches. 

 
12. Would you possibly be able to clarify the ___ out of ____ will be met. For this goal, I 

understand it to mean that we will have, for example, 5 new CCA's. Does that mean we 
put 5 out of 5? and then explain in detail who these will be? For the first objective, I 
listed that 3 out of 3 would be met, saying that the Executive Director, HUB director, and 
fiscal officer would attend the HUB training. Is this correct? 

 

 Yes, this is correct. Due to the nature of the system being used by multiple agencies for 
multiple grant types, this is the only way the objective could be presented. Thus, as read 
it does not make sense, grammatically for you. It essentially means, using your 5 CCAs 
example, that out of 5 CCAs you intend to train 5 CCAs.  
 
This format, albeit worded in a unique way, will allow you to report on how many you 
CCAs you trained in a given quarter, in the quarterly report. All of your numeric 
objectives will be prepopulated into your quarterly report form. So, you will put how 
many were trained in the quarter in the first blank out of 5 (which will already be pre-
populated) in the second blank. 

 
13.  I am emailing to ask for assistance.  I see that your Commission has released an RFP 

for Certified Community Pathways HUB Infant Mortality and that there is support to 
expand three existing Pathways.  One of our physicians from UC/UC Health in 
Cincinnati received money from the state for a program with the name of Ambulatory 
Obstetric Pathways, but the word HUB was not in the contract. Is there a link where I 
can find the existing pathways community HUBS so that I can ascertain if we are 
eligible to apply for expansion funding? 

 

 To find a list of the Certified Pathways Community HUBs that the Commission funds, 
please visit our website at www.mih.ohio.gov. Once there, go to the Grants 
Opportunities page and scroll down to HUB Replication and Expansion. Here, you will 
find a list of Commission funded Certified Pathways Community HUBs. To find the 
locations for which we are funding Certified Community Pathways HUB grants, please 
view our Certified Pathways Community HUBs FY20 RFP. 
 
To find a list of other funded HUBs you would need to consult the various funders of 
such HUBs directly. The Commission does not have such a list from other funders. 

 
14. I am completing the Pathways HUB RFP and understand an “Administrative 

Compliance” form is required.  Where do I access the form?  I do not see it on the 
project documentation section of the online system. 

 



 The administrative compliance form is located on our website, www.mih.ohio.gov, on 
the Grantee Forms page. Once there, scroll down to the General Documents area 
where you will find the administrative compliance form. 

 
15. There are questions in the Pathways HUB RFP, “Provide a copy of your HIPAA 

Agreements that were signed between the current HUB and care coordination agencies 
and how you train staff and contractors on HIPAA.”  Does this question apply to 
organizations who are applying to become a new HUB? 

 

 If you are a new HUB, thus you do not have any HIPAA agreements between your HUB 
(as it does not yet exist) and its associated care coordination agencies, this question 
does not apply to you. However, to complete the page and be able to save you must 
respond to the question. Thus, you can respond based on my answer to your question 
herein. 

 
16.  Can I upload the list of Board Members in the Project Documentation Section?  I don’t 

see where the information is supposed to be listed? 
 

 Please consult page 24 of the MHGM applicant user guide for complete steps. 
 
17.  Could you tell me where we can find further information regarding the required MOU 

document that needs to be attached to the grant application? 
 

 Please upload copies of the MOUs between the applicant agency and your care 
coordination agencies or referral partners in the project documentation section of your 
MHGM application. The Commission does not have a template document for this 
purpose. 

 
 
Fiscal: 

 
1. If funded, can a new HUB pay an existing HUB, (during the first and second year 

agreement), for: HUB services; required software license fees; and help to support 
administrative overhead to keep the system operational in the grant structure proposed 
in this communication? 

 

 No. The intent of the RFP is to have each new HUB be its own standalone entity, not to 
be a hybrid model reliant on an existing HUB for functionality through contracts.  

 
2.  Under the Direct Client Service Personnel section under the budget, are these the CHWs 

that provide services through the CCA’s?  And does this also include The Director and 
Program Evaluator/Data Analyst or are these considered Administrative?   

 

 CHW’s and REEP evaluator are contract employees and therefore travel 
reimbursement would have to be included in their contract with the awarded agency.   
The Program Director can include their salary under personnel if the Director oversees 
the program, but these charges are usually included as administrative costs.   
The Data Analysis can be included under personnel or administrative costs as well.  
Where time is charged is dependent on the agency’s needs. 

 
3. Is the Project Director considered "Direct Personnel Costs"? 



 

 Yes. 
 
4. Would the CHWs employed through the grant be "Direct Personnel Costs" or 

"Contractual" through the MOU with the CCAs? 
 

 CHWs employed through the grant would be "Contractual" through the MOU with the 
CCAs. 

 
5. Are incentives for families that have completed pathways an allowable costs through 

the grant? 
 

 Yes. 
 
6. For the budget, what percentage can be allocated to REEP evaluation? There is a line item on 

the budget for called “audit charges.”  Is this a charge for OMCH to audit us?  If so, how much 
are the audit charges and how often do they occur? Q2 on the Administrative Compliance 
Form asks about “third party funding.” What is meant by 3rd party finding? 

 

 The percentage amount charged for REEP Evaluation is between 10 to 15% of the total 
grant amount.  If funded in year II, the agency will hire an independent audit to conduct 
a “Program Audit” of Commission funds.  The grantee is required to submit a program 
specific audit based on the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and on 
the Generally Accepted Auditing Standard. 3rd party funding can be any funding that 
supports the agency (City, County, Federal Government, Corporate & Community 
Foundations, United Way Services, Program Service Fees, etc. 


